
 
 
 

REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2010 

 
7:00 P.M. – EXECUTIVE SESSION (ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM) 

 
7:30 P.M. – REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
 EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

Move to Executive Session to prepare for and review negotiations on compensation or 
other terms and conditions of employment for City personnel. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
  REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

 
AA..  CCOONNSSEENNTT  AAGGEENNDDAA  

 
a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of the minutes from the December 7, 2010 Regular City Commission Meeting  
and the December 9, 2010 Piqua City Commission Worksession 
 

BB..  OOLLDD  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
  
           a. ORD. NO. 33-10 (3rd Reading-Amended)  
  An amended Ordinance to make appropriations for the City of Piqua, Ohio for the year 2011 
 
      b. ORD. NO. 34-10 (3rd Reading)  
  An Ordinance repealing Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new  
  Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to wages of certain Municipal  
  Employees 
 

C. NNEEWW  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
 

                a. ORD. NO. 35-10 (1st Reading) 
  An Ordinance to vacate a public alley right of way 
 
     b. ORD. NO. 36-10 (1st Reading) 

An Emergency Ordinance to make Appropriations for the City of Piqua, Ohio for the year 
2010 



 2

 
 
 
 

     c. RES. NO. R-150-10 
  A Resolution awarding a contract to Wenco, Inc. for design and construction management 
 of a new Power System Service Center 
 
    d.    RES. NO. R-151-10 

            A Resolution requesting authorization to purchase the real property and buildings(s) located 
  at 517 E. Ash Street on the E. Ash Street Reconstruction project, payable to Wendy Deras, 
  in the amount not to exceed $56,000 
 

e. RES. NO. R-152-10 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a labor contract with Local Union 252, 
International Association of Firefighters, AFL-CIO-CLC (Fire Officers) 

 
      f. RES. NO. R-153-10  

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a labor contract with Local Union 252, 
International Association of Firefighters, AFL-CIO-CLC 

 
                  g. RES. NO. R-154-10 
    A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a labor contract with the Ohio 
  Patrolmen’s Benevolent Association 
 
       h. RES. NO. R-155-10 
  A Resolution authorizing transfers of cash from the General Fund to the other funds for 
  the Fiscal Year 2010 
 
       i. RES. NO. R-156-10 
  A Resolution authorizing transfers of cash from the General Fund to the other funds for 
  the Fiscal Year 2011 
 

DD..  OOTTHHEERR  
  
  a.  Economic Development Update - Mr. Bill Murphy 

 
EE..      AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT  

 
 

  



 1

                                                                                                                                                                                       
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday DECEMBER 7, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
 

Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present were 
Commissioners Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: None. 
 

 REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of the minutes from the November 16, 2010 Regular Piqua City Commission meeting 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that the minutes of the November 
16, 2010 Regular Piqua City Commission meeting be approved. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Martin, 
Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 31-10 (3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to modify Appendix Table A, Chapter 150 Building Regulations of the Piqua Code 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the third reading of the ordinance to amend the Plumbing Fee 
Schedule to better cover the costs for inspections and reviews. 
 
Commissioner Martin asked if anyone found out what the fees were for other cities commercial 
reviews. 
 
Health & Sanitation Director Amy Welker stated yes, most of them are the same as we proposed 
previously, the $25 minimum with the $.01/square foot and further explained. 
 
There was discussion on changing the amount of the Plan Review Commercial fee back to the $25 
minimum with the $ .01/square foot. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to amend Ordinance No. 31-10 
to change the Plan Review for Commercial from $50 minimum with the $ .01/square foot back to $25 
minimum. $ .01square/foot.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 31-10 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Ordinance No. 31-10 be 
adopted, as amended. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay, None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 31-10 adopted, as amended. 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

ORD. NO. 32-10 (3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance providing for the issuance and sale of $55,953.49 of bonds in anticipation of the 
collection of special assessments to pay costs of construction in the year 2009, sidewalks, curbs and 
gutters on Riverside Drive (Phase 1) with the necessary appurtenances thereto 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this Ordinance would authorize the City to bond the $55,953.49 to 
reimburse the Street Fund to cover the cost of the property assessments for the Riverside Drive 
Construction Project.  As the assessments are paid back over the next five-ten the years the bonds 
will be retired, said City Manager Enderle. 
 
Mayor Fess noted the interest paid by the property owners would pay the interest charges on the 
bonds so there would be no cost to the city.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 32-10 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 32-10 be 
adopted. . Roll call, Aye: Fess, Martin, Vogt, Wilson, and Terry. Nay, None.  Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 32-10 adopted. 
 
ORD. NO. 33-10 (2nd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to make appropriations for the City of Piqua, Ohio for the year 2011 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the second reading of the Ordinance to make appropriations that 
would implement the 2011 Budget, Mr. Enderle gave an overview of the Budget, stating the City 
Commissioners did not recommend any changes at their Budget Review Work Sessions, but stated 
the budget levels are at the 2003 level with no end in sight with the recession.  The City should end 
2010 with about a $2.6 million dollar fund balance, which is about a $1.6 million dollars better than 
predicted.  It was stated the City Managers budget would be increased due to the retirement of Mr. 
Enderle and the hiring of a new City Manager. The City Commission budget will also be increased due 
to some of the costs that cannot be controlled, and the possibility of having to spend $17,000 for the 
recall election.  Another $10,000 has been added for a Citizens Satisfactory Survey, with all the cuts 
being made the City is implementing a program of performance measures where the staff is going to 
start collecting data on the services that are provided with one being customer satisfaction.  All of the 
other departments have made budget cuts as requested.  Mr. Enderle continued reviewing the 
department budgets. 
 
Mayor Fess stated this budget does not include any layoffs in the Safety Services, and Mr. Enderle 
further stated there would not be any lay-offs anywhere.  Positions being vacated and retirement 
positions will not be filled with a total of about six positions not being filled in 2011.  The North 
Cemetery Bridge is in need of replacement and will have to be replaced in 2011.  Mayor Fess stated 
the City of Piqua owns the bridges and the mausoleum in the Cemetery, but not the Cemetery itself. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he does not want to close the Swimming Pool next year.  Commissioner 
Wilson also stated he did not want to close the Swimming Pool, Commissioner Martin also agreed.  
City Manager Enderle stated the Appropriations Ordinance would have to be amended by 
$179,298.00 to include the Swimming Pool if the Commission wanted to include it. 
 
Commissioner Terry inquired about leasing the Golf Course equipment versus purchasing it.  Finance 
Director Cynthia Holtzapple explained how the lease option would be more costly to the city. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated if the Commission chooses to include the $179, 298 for the Swimming 
Pool it would reduce the General Fund Balance by that amount. 
 



 3

There was a brief discussion on the Swimming Pool costs and usage for 2011, and it was stated it 
would cost approximately $25,000 to close the pool. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 33-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to amend Ordinance No. 32-10 to 
include the $179,298 in the 2011 Budget for the Swimming Pool.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Vogt, Terry, 
Martin, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Finance Director Holtzapple stated there are several grant opportunities that they have became aware 
of and will look into them when amending Ordinance No. 33-10 for the third reading. 
 
Ordinance No. 33-10 was given a second reading, as amended. 
 
ORD. NO. 34-10 (2ndReading) 
 
An Ordinance repealing Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new Schedule 
A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to wages of certain Municipal Employees 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the second reading to amend the minimum wage rate on Schedule 
A-1.  Passage of the Ordinance will put the City in compliance with state law. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 34-10 
 
Ordinance No. 34-10 was given a second reading. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Vogt to bring Resolution No. R-135-10 off 
the table. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Terry, Fess and Wilson. Nay, None. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
RES. NO. R-135-10 (Tabled 11-16-10) 
 
A Resolution authorizing the execution of a loan agreement with Quint Creative Group, LLC in the 
amount of $45,000 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this would authorize another USDA Enterprise Loan in the amount of 
$45,000 to Quint Creative Group LLC for the purchase of a computer graphics machine, with the term 
of the loan being seven years at 3% interest.  Mr. Enderle further explained the reason for tabling the 
resolution at the previous meeting was due to a possible conflict of interest with the City Clerk, Becky 
Cool and her husband doing business as Silver Fox Logo Wear as a contract vendor with Quint 
Creative Group.  A statement was received from both Quint Creative Group and Silver Fox Logo Wear 
stating the amount of business received through Quint Creative Group, and that Silver Fox Logo Wear 
would not benefit in any way with the purchase of the CNC Machine being purchased with the USDA 
funds.  There would also not be any conflict of interest from an Administration standpoint, as the City 
Clerk has noting to do with the review and approval of this loan, stated City Manager Enderle. 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall further explained State Law requires there be a direct interest in the company 
to be a conflict of interest and further explained the law. Ms. Wall stated the legal opinion is there is no 
conflict of interest at this time. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Brian Quinter, owner of Quint Creative Group LLC came forward and gave a brief overview of the use 
of the CNC Machine they plan to purchase with the USDA Loan funds.  With the purchase of this 



 4

machine they plan to be able to do more work in house, thus keeping money in Piqua, and to offer 
their services to other Piqua businesses, said Mr. Quinter. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated there were only two companies that applied for these loans, and we need 
to support and encourage businesses in Piqua. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated when these USDA Loans are paid back we can use the funds to help other 
local businesses. 
   
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-135-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt, Martin, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-135-10 adopted.   
 
Mayor Fess stated Quint Creative Group has been a good company in the City and are glad to see 
them expanding, and wish them the best of luck in the future. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
RES. NO. R-139-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit a Grant Application to the Ohio Department of 
Natural Resources for assistance in the removal and replacement of Ash Trees impacted by the 
Emerald Ash Borer within the City of Piqua 
 
City Manager Enderle stated Resolution No. 139-10 is a request to submit a request to the Ohio 
Department of Natural Resources for $6,000 for the removal and replacement of trees impacted by the 
Emerald Ash Borer.   City Manager Enderle thanked the donor who stepped up and donated the 
$6000 match the city is required to utilize the funding from the Ohio Department of Natural Resources. 
 
City Engineer Amy Havenar gave a brief overview of the replacement of the trees and their locations. 
 
Commissioner Terry voiced concern of several of the larger trees in the city on the curb lines that are 
potential problems, and asked if they could be taken down.   
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-139-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-136-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-139-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-140-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing the City of Piqua to file an application to the State of Ohio to participate in the 
Clean Ohio Revitalization Program 
 
City Manager Enderle stated there is a set of four resolutions that the City Commission is being asked 
to consider which will accomplish different aspects of the filling procedures dealing with the Clean 
Ohio Revitalization Fund. Resolution No. R-144-10 and the next three resolutions are necessary in 
order for the City to actually apply for the funding and he explained. City Manager Enderle reminded 
the Commissioners there is a purchase offer that has been approved with the current owner of the 
property contingent upon the city receiving the grant.  If the city receives the grant we will purchase the 
property, and it will become the city’s and the money that will be needed to match the grant funds will 
be the money the owner has already spent on the cleanup so far, and will be no out of pocket expense 
to the city. 
 



 5

Commissioner Wilson voiced concern over the City Manager’s name being listed on the grant and 
asked if it should be listed as just the “City Manager” in Section 1. 
 
Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director Bill Murphy explained the Grant requires a 
specific name be listed, thus the reason for Mr. Enderle’s name being used at this time. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-140-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-140-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-140-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-141-10 
 
A Resolution in support of an application to the Clean Ohio Council 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the second of the four resolutions; this is a resolution of support of 
the application to the Clean Ohio Council.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-141-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-141-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-141-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-142-10 
 
A Resolution acknowledging and adopting the status of the Piqua Memorial Hospital Site as one of the 
highest priority redevelopment areas as defined in the redevelopment opportunities redevelopment 
analysis report 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the third of the four resolutions acknowledging and adopting the 
state of the Piqua Memorial Hospital Site as the highest priority redevelopment area as defined in the 
Redevelopment Opportunities Redevelopment Analysis Report.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-142-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-142-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-142-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-143-10 
 
A Resolution declaring future development at the site of the Piqua Memorial Hospital will incorporate 
sustainable design principles 
 
City Manager Enderle this is the fourth of the four resolutions declaring that future development at the 
Piqua Memorial Hospital Site will incorporate sustainable design principals. 
 
Mayor Fess asked for an explanation of the sustainable design principals.  Mr. Murphy explained what 
the sustainable design principals are and how they are applied. 
 



 6

 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated this has come at a time when the City Commission is getting a lot of static 
over the Piqua Memorial Hospital site.  We currently do not have ownership of the property and are 
doing what we can to get control of the property. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-143-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-143-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-143-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-144-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for City Membership to American Municipal Power 
Inc. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this resolution would allow the City of Piqua Power System to continue its 
membership in American Municipal Power for the year 2011.  
 
Power Systems Director Ed Krieger stated this membership allows the city to do a lot and gets good 
return on the money by insuring customer’s low cost power. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-144-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-144-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Fess, Martin, Vogt, Wilson, and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-144-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-145-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing the City Purchasing Agent to purchase #2 fuel oil on the open and spot 
market 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this resolution authorizes the City of Piqua Power System to purchase #2 
fuel oil as needed for the year 2011 from one or more of the listed suppliers.  The Power System has 
included $50,000 in the 2011 budget to cover these potential purchases. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-145-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-145-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Fess, Vogt, Terry, Martin, and Wilson. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-145-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-146-10 
 
A Resolution retaining the services of Sawvel and Associates to provide Professional Consulting and 
Engineering Services for the City  
 
City Manager Enderle stated Resolution No. R-146-10 authorizes the City of Piqua Power System to 
retain the services of Sawvel and Associates to provide professional consulting and engineering 



 7

services in 2011.  The Power System has included $80,000 in their 2011 budget to cover the cost of 
these services. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-146-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-146-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-146-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-147-10 
 
A Resolution retaining the services Cooperative Response Center, Inc. to provide Professional 
Customer Call Answering and Dispatch Services for the City 
 
City Manager Enderle stated in March of 2007 the Power System began utilizing the Cooperative 
Response Center, headquartered in Austin, Minnesota to provide after-hours call answering and 
dispatch services. This became necessary when the steam and hot water system was shutdown in 
December of 2006.  This resulted in the elimination of shift operators who provided these same 
services for the Power System. 
 
Commissioner Martin asked if there has been any feedback from the use of the call center services. 
 
Power Systems Director Krieger stated they have had no complaints over the past four years it has 
been used so far, stating they are a very good group to work with and are very professional. 
 
Commissioner Wilson asked how the calls are handled.  Mr. Krieger explained the process after the 
calls are received. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-147-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-147-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-147-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-148-10 
 
A Resolution amending the purchase order to Reynolds Inliner, LLC for a current change order plus 
additional funds on the 36 West Interceptor Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this particular change order is for additional repairs to the sewer section 
we are replacing.   
 
Utilities Director Dave Burtner explained we are asking for the additional funds in case we have 
additional changes as this project continues. The 36” West Interceptor Sewer is directly connected to 
the Sanitary Sewer Overflow gate on the west side of the Miami River.  When the wet weather event 
causes this gate to open, sewage is directly discharged to the river.  This discharge is a health 
concern that the OPEA wants the City of Piqua to mitigate the occurrences to their approval level, said 
City Manager Enderle. 
 
Bob Yoxhimer, from Camp, Dresser, McKee, Inc. Consultant on the project further explained the need 
for the repairs. 
 
 
 



 8

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-148-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-148-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-148-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. R-149-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with the Trustees of Springcreek 
Township to furnish Emergency Ambulance Service and Fire Protection 
 
City Manager Enderle stated the City has provided fire and EMS service to the two adjoining 
Townships since 1973.  Our previous contract with Springcreek Township was a three (3) year 
contract running from March 1, 2007 to February 28, 2010 at an annual rate of $59,775. The City and 
Township executed a contract extension to September 30, 2010 to provide additional time to negotiate 
new terms for a renewed contract.  Because Springcreek Township was seeking a fire and EMS levy 
on the November 2, 2010 ballot to support the new contract, the Administration agreed to continue 
providing EMS and fire service under a memorandum of understanding through the balance of 
2010,which ran from September 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010.  The total amount of $61,568 
for that period has been paid in full. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-149-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-149-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Fess, Martin, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-149-10 adopted.  
 
OTHER 
 
Monthly Reports – October 2010 
 
Monthly Reports for October 2010 were accepted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Frank Barhorst, S. Wayne Street came forward and stated he wanted citizens to understand the 
importance of the award received from the Ohio Auditors Office,” Making Your Tax Dollars Work” that 
was given to the City Finance Department recently. Mr. Barhorst congratulated Cynthia Holtzapple, 
City Manager Enderle, and the City Commissioners on doing an outstanding job in achieving this 
prestigious award.  Mayor Fess thanked Mr. Barhorst for his comments. 
 
Lorna Swisher, Executive Director MainStreet Piqua, came forward to highlight some of the activities 
that have taken place recently in the Downtown. Starting with Christmas on the Green, the Holly Jolly 
5K Run, the Christmas Parade, and the Festival of Trees that runs through December 18th.  Ms. 
Swisher wanted to thank all the MainStreet Volunteers and the sponsors for their support.  Ms Swisher 
thanked the City of Piqua’s various departments for their outstanding support for these activities, and 
stated the community is very blessed to have such amazing city employees. 
 
Mayor Fess stated volunteers need leadership, and Ms. Swisher provides that leadership. 
 
Tom Hudson, N. Downing Street, inquired about the various new street signs, and stated the City did 
an excellent job on Washington Avenue, asked the status of the recall petitions and asked if in the 
future could the Charter be changed to state specific reasons for a recall.  Law Director Wall stated no, 
the Charter Committee meets only once every ten years to make changes.  City Manage Enderle 



 9

stated the Commission can consider an amendment at any time and can put it before the voters.  
Mayor Fess further stated she also believes there should be specific reasons stated such as criminal 
charges, fraud, etc. 
 
Mr. Hudson encouraged citizens to plant trees to replace the ones that are being removed, 
congratulated the Finance Department on the “Making Your Tax Dollars Work” Award, inquired as to 
when the Bike Path would be completed to Troy, and thanked the citizens and asked them to 
remember the Veterans on this 69th Anniversary of Pearl Harbor. 
 
Commissioner Wilson congratulated the Finance Department on receiving the “Making Your Tax 
Dollars Work “ Award. 
 
Commissioner Vogt congratulated Ms Holtzapple and her staff for receiving the “Making Your Tax 
Dollars Work” award, further stating the city budget is lean, but we do a lot with so little.   
Commissioner Vogt thanked Loran Swisher and MainStreet Piqua for an outstanding Christmas 
Parade stating all the volunteers do a great job.  “Keep your eyes on the Piqua Memorial Project, we 
are working on it”, said Commissioner Vogt. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated Washington Avenue is looking great. Christmas on the Green and the 
Christmas Parade were very enjoyable, and thanked Lorna and MainStreet Piqua for all their hard 
work. Commissioner Terry encouraged citizens to come downtown to see and enjoy the Christmas 
Trees, and support the downtown merchants. 
  
Commissioner Martin stated he had pretty much the same comments and echoed Commissioner 
Terry’s comments. 
 
Mayor Fess stated the Festival of Trees is located in the Apple Tree Gallery and is free of charge and 
encourage citizens to come downtown to see them. Mayor Fess congratulated Doug and Marj Stillwell 
on having the honor of being the Grand Marshals in the 2010 Christmas Parade, and wished Doug 
Stilwell the best in his retirement from his downtown business at the end of the year. Mayor Fess 
stated Washington Avenue looks great, and is a big improvement. 
 
Adjournment  
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular Piqua 
City Commission Meeting at 9:05 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: 
None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

          _____________________________ 
                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 

THRUSDAY, DECEMBER 9, 2010 
10:00 A.M. 

ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO 45356 
 

Piqua City Commission met in a Special Work Session in the Administrative Conference 
Room located on the 2nd Floor of the Municipal Government Complex at 201 W. Water 
Street.  Mayor Fess called the meeting to order at 10:00 A.M.  Also present were 
Commissioners Vogt, Wilson, Martin, and Terry. Absent: None.  Also present were 
Utilities Director Dave Burtner, Water Superintendent Don Freisthler, City Engineer Amy 
Havenar, Finance Director Cindy Holtzapple, City Manager Fred Enderle, Bob 
Yoxthimer, Consultant from CDM, and Brent Huntsman of Terran Corporation. 
 
Purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss Water Exploration – Findings and Options. 
 
Mr. Freisthler stated Seismic Refraction was performed on six different sites, and the 
Seismic Refraction results were then evaluated.  It was determined the presence of a 
deep but narrow aquifer that runs northwest to south-east across portions of the 
Johnston Farm property.  
 
There was discussion of various sites that were tested, how the testing was done, water 
contamination, and recharging of wells was explained. 
 
Utilities Director Dave Burtner stated there are four options to be reviewed and gave a 
brief recap of the information they have gathered since the April 1, 2010 Commission 
Work Session.  These options include: 
 
Option 1:  Continue forward with ground water exploration trying to achieve 100% 
ground water supply. 
 
Option 2:  Focus on achieving a blended supply of water (both ground water and 
surface water) and move forward with the new water plant design. 
 
Option 3:  Move forward with the new water plant design using the existing surface 
water sources. 
 
Option 4 Pursue the purchase of treated water from the City of Troy. 
 
Options 1,2 & 3 will all require the construction of a new 6-million gallon water treatment 
plant at an estimated cost of $20 million - $22 million (regardless of the water source). 
 
Water Plant Superintendent Don Freisthler went over each of the four options explaining 
the various steps that would need to be taken, and the recommendations along with the 
pros and cons of each option. 
 
 
 
 



 
Option 1 
 
Bob Yoxhimer, Consultant from CDM, explained if Option 1 is chosen they will have to 
modify the contract to include Task 2A which will allow for the deepening of the two 
proposed piezometers and the addition of a 3rd piezometer to 300’ deep to explore the 
deep aquifer found on the Johnston Farm site.  This will increase the contract cost by 
$92,115 with an estimated cost to be a minimum of $10 million for the development of 
the new well fields and the associated piping.  Mr. Freisthler stated it would require a lot 
more testing to determine the best area for the wells and the expense would be very 
costly.   There is no guarantee of the quality or quantity of the water in the aquifer, doing 
test would be very difficult because of the location.  Because Johnston Farm is a 
historical site it took eight weeks just to get permission to conduct the tests, and 
archeologists would have to monitor any drilling to oversee the finding of any artifacts.   
 
There was discussion of the pros and cons of Option 1. Pros are: It would require less 
treatment and less cost for operation, the water would be bacteria free, and there would 
be virtually no turbidity and a greater chance for odor free water. The difference between 
ground water and surface water was explained, along with the different type of water 
plants that would be required for each.  
 
Cons are: There would be unknown water quantity and quality, will most likely not find 
the entire water supply needed, problem with land availability for placement of the wells, 
a wellhead protection plan would be required, and it would require a substantial capital 
cost for ground water exploration and development. 
 
Option 2 
 
If Option 2 is chosen we will still have to purse the exploration of the deep aquifer as in 
Option 1 and combine this water with the existing surface water sources (Gravel Pit, 
Great Miami River & Swift Run Lake). And the costs are estimated to be a minimum of 
$10 million for the development of the new well fields and piping. 
 
There was discussion of the pros and cons of Option 2. Pros are: Blended water 
requires less treatment and less cost to operate, and the existing surface water sources 
can be used. 
 
Cons are: Both wellhead and watershed protection plans are required, there is still the 
issue with land availability for well placements, would have to meet all ground water and 
surface water treatment regulations, and would still require substantial capital cost for 
groundwater exploration and development. 
 
 There was discussion on possibly retrofitting the old water plant, but Mr. Burtner 
explained that the EPA would not allow the city to build a new plant on the old site. The 
current Water Plant is eighty-five (85) years old now, said Mr. Burtner.  Finance Director 
Cindy Holtzapple stated the city would have a hard time borrowing funds for the project 
because of the age of the plant. 
 
 
 
 



Option 3  
 
If Option 3 were chosen the City would begin moving forward with the new Water 
Treatment Plant design.  The EPA has stated a surface water plant would be allowable, 
and would need to replace the Raw Water Pumping Station. A new modern surface 
water treatment plant can meet the required EPA treatment regulations, and there would 
still be an overall cost savings for this option of an estimated $4 million for not having to 
develop new well fields.  The costs are estimated to be $6 million for the construction of 
the raw water pump station(s) and the associated raw water piping. 
 
There was discussion of the Pros and Cons of Option 3. Pros are: Work could begin 
immediately towards the new plant design, there is an adequate supply of source water 
available, the EPA has already approved the concept of a new surface water plant, and 
there would be substantial savings in the overall project cost versus having to develop 
new well fields. 
 
Cons are:  A watershed protection plan would be required, and there would be less 
stable water quality. 
 
There was discussion on the amount of water that was required per day for the City of 
Piqua, and it was stated six million gallons was required at this time per day, but that 
amount could increase if a large water user such as a plastics company would come into 
the city and require large amounts of water daily. 
 
Option 4 
 
Negotiations with the City of Troy would have to be re-opened to purchase their treated 
water. Costs estimated for this are $150,000 for the water system study to determine 
how are current system will react to the reversal of flow through our system.  A minimum 
of $15 million would be needed for the construction of the new water system 
infrastructure to extend and connect into the City of Troy’s existing water system. 
 
There was discussion of the Pros and Cons of Option 4. Pros are: This would eliminate 
the need to construct a new full-scale water treatment plant in Piqua. 
 
Cons are: It would leave the City of Piqua totally dependent upon the City of Troy for all 
of the water supply, would require the City of Piqua to reverse the flow of water through 
our system, it would reduce our ability to influence customer rates, and we would still be 
required to construct a limited water treatment plant facility. 
 
There was discussion regarding the City of Troy having complete control over the City of 
Piqua on water distribution, quantity and rates and fees to our customers. City Manager 
Enderle stated he doesn’t believe this is the best option, the City would still have to build 
a plant, would still have to rely on someone else for water, would have no say over the 
rates and Piqua’s rates could not be lower than the City of Troy’s rates. 
 
Mr. Burtner emphasized the City is at a very important time in this study where we need 
to make decisions.  It is important that the Ohio EPA see that we are making progress 
and moving forward to correct the situation. This is something that needs to done sooner 
than later. 
 



Summary 
 
Being able to obtain 100% of the water needed from ground water would be the ideal 
scenario as far as treatment, but based on the research to date it is very unlikely to 
happen. At best, we could possible achieve only a portion of our water source needs. 
Having blended water (both surface and ground water) provides a better raw water 
quality than strictly surface water which makes for less costly treatment. However, we 
would still have the cost of the new well development. By using an all-surface water 
source, future regulations could require we increase our raw water storage capacity.  If 
this is required this could be achieved by dredging out the lakes and hydraulic system, 
which could affect the community in regards to the aesthetics of the bodies of water, but 
dredging would also improve the quality of the raw water. 
 
Conclusion 
 
By finding the new aquifer on the Johnston Farm Property, it was felt the Commission 
should be apprised of the findings to determine whether they want to continue the 
groundwater option any further.  This location is probably going to be the best option to 
find a ground water source, but will most likely not yield the capacity needed for our 
treatment operations.  The proposed treatment plant would be designed as a surface 
water plant utilizing the existing surface water sources and would still be capable of 
treating ground water if the City should decide to pursue that in the future. 
 
Commissioners discussed the options and raised various questions concerning each 
option along with the pros and cons of the options. There was discussion of the 
possibility of raising the water rates in the future with the last rate increase being a 
number of years ago. 
 
Mr. Freisthler stated he wanted the City Commissioners to be better informed on the 
issues with the Water Plant.  Mayor Fess stated this was a very informative study 
session and said she felt she understood the situation much better. Commissioner 
Wilson stated, “We need to better educate the public on the need for a new Water 
Plant”.  
 
Mayor Fess stated the best option seems to be to build a new water treatment plant for 
surface water with the possibility of using ground water in the future. 
 
All Commissioners were in agreement to further pursue Option 3 at this time. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the 
Piqua City Commission Special Meeting at 11:50 A.M. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, 
Vogt, Martin, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

     ______________________________ 
                  LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
                 REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 



















 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 34-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SCHEDULE A-1 OF 
CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA CODE AND ADOPTING 
A NEW SCHEDULE A-1 OF CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA 
CODE, RELATING TO WAGES OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL 
EMPLOYEES 

 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 
the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
  
 SEC.  1: Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, as adopted by 
Ordinance No. 21-10, is hereby repealed; and 
 
 SEC.  2: Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code (appended hereto 
as Exhibit “E”) is hereby adopted; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 

 
1ST READING 11-16-2010 
2nd READING 12-7-2010 
       ___________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of November 16, 2010 
 

Date:  November 11, 2010 
 

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Elaine G. Barton, Human Resources Director  
  
SUBJECT: Revise Schedule A-1 (Temporary, Seasonal, and Part-time Employees) 
 
PURPOSE:   

 
1. Adopt the ordinance revising Chapter 33- Schedule A-1 increasing the minimum wage 

rate from $7.30 per hour to $7.40 per hour. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt Ordinance No. 34-10 to increase the wages of certain temporary, seasonal, and part-
time employees. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On January 1, 2011, the minimum wage rate in the State of Ohio will be increased from $7.30 
per hour to $7.40 per hour.   There are several positions included on Schedule A-1 that are 
currently at $7.30 per hour.   Passage of this ordinance will put the City in compliance with 
state law. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
1) Adopt Ordinance No. 34-10 increasing the wage rates of certain temporary, seasonal, and 

part-time employees to the minimum wage rate to take effect on January 1, 2011. 
2) Do not adopt the Ordinance and be out of compliance with state law.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The increase to the minimum wage rate will amount to a ten cent per hour increase for 
approximately fourteen positions.   The majority of these positions will not be filled in the 
2011 budget.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
As the majority of the positions affected will not be filled in 2011, the increase in the wage 
rate will be minimal.   However, it has been accounted for in the 20ll calendar year budget. 
 
 
 
 



 Page 2 
 

 
Schedule A-1 
November 16, 2010 
 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
N/A 
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The City will be in compliance with the State of Ohio minimum wage rate requirement. 
 
 
 
 
 



Schedule A-1 Effective January 1, 2011
CLASSIFICATION/ TITLE HOURLY RATE
CLERK TYPIST (CO-OP STUDENT) 7.40
CITY CLERK* 7.40
CLERK TYPIST A 7.40
CLERK TYPIST B 7.42
RECORDS & DATA ENTRY CLERK 7.52
ACCOUNT CLERK* 9.94
SECRETARY I* 10.24
SECRETARY II* 11.82
ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY* 15.52
ENGINEERING CO-OP I (STUDENT) 9.48
ENGINEERING CO-OP II (STUDENT) 10.33
ENGINEERING CO-OP III (STUDENT) 11.13
ENGINEERING CO-OP IV (STUDENT) 11.97
PLANNING TECHNICIAN 16.48
INTERNS 7.40 to 12.36
PARKING CONTROL OFFICER 7.92
ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER 7.40
POWER DISTRIBUTION STOREKEEPER 15.45
PLUMBING INSPECTOR 19.10
CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR 19.10
PUBLIC HEALTH NURSE 19.10
STREET SWEEPER 10.00
LABORER A 7.42
LABORER B 8.26
LABORER C 9.18
CUSTODIAN 7.40
REFUSE COLLECTOR 7.40
MAINTENANCE WORKER 7.40
STREET DEPT. MAINTENANCE SUPV. 9.91
SEASONAL GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER A 7.42 plus free golf**
SEASONAL GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER B 8.26 plus free golf**
SEASONAL GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER C 9.18 plus free golf**
SUMMER GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER A 7.40 plus free golf**
SUMMER GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER B 7.40 plus free golf**
SUMMER GOLF COURSE MAINT. LABORER C 7.45 plus free golf**
GOLF COURSE CLUBHOUSE ATTENDANT 7.42 plus free golf**
CART/RANGE ATTENDANT 7.40 plus free golf**
FOOD SERVICE ATTENDANT (GOLF) 7.40 plus free golf**
LIFEGUARD A 7.40
LIFEGUARD B 7.40
LIFEGUARD C 7.45
TICKET WINDOW ATTENDANT A 7.40
TICKET WINDOW ATTENDANT B 7.40
HEAD TICKET WINDOW ATTEND. A 7.45
HEAD TICKET WINDOW ATTEND. B 7.83
RECREATION LEADER 7.79
RECREATION ASSISTANT 7.40
SPORTS INSTRUCTOR 8.53 to 17.06
DANCE/FITNESS INSTRUCTOR 8.53 to 17.06
POOL MANAGER 524.45 WEEKLY RATE
ASSISTANT POOL MANAGER A 362.35 WEEKLY RATE
ASSISTANT POOL MANAGER B 379.65 WEEKLY RATE
HEAD LIFE GUARD A 312.91 WEEKLY RATE
HEAD LIFE GUARD B 330.22 WEEKLY RATE
ASSISTANT LAW DIRECTOR 823.40 WEEKLY RATE
*These are confidential employees and are not in any bargaining unit.
**certain restrictions do apply - must work a minimum of 20 hours per week





ORDINANCE NO. 35-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE A PUBLIC ALLEY RIGHT OF WAY  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, the City Commission 

adopted Resolution No. 127-10 declaring its intent to vacate an unimproved public 

alley right of way located west of S. Main Street between Hemm Avenue and Statler 

Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, a notice of the declaration of intent to vacate the subject right of 

way was served to the abutting property owners and published in the local 

newspaper; and   

WHEREAS, the notice of the declaration of intent stated the time and place at 

which objections could be presented before the Planning Commission; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met at in open session and took 

public comment regarding the proposed public right of way vacation; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission after hearing the item and considering 

the public comments received and information provided, recommended approving 

the vacation of an unimproved public alley right of way located west of S. Main Street 

between Hemm Avenue and Statler Avenue, as shown on the exhibit and the 

vacation plat drawing attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, vacation of public right of 

way must be adopted by Ordinance by this Commission; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 

that: 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby takes the action necessary to 

authorize and approve the vacation of an unimproved public alley right of way 

located west of S. Main Street between Hemm Avenue and Statler Avenue, as 

shown on the exhibit and the vacation plat drawing attached hereto. 

SEC. 2:   The City Manager shall cause the affected portion of right of 

way to be vacated and all appropriate and necessary legal instruments 

supporting such action to be properly recorded. 



SEC. 3:   This Ordinance shall take precedent over all prior Ordinances 

or Resolutions pertaining to the affected public right of way. 

SEC. 4: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law 

 
 
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
        
 

PASSED:   _______________________   

 

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of December 21, 2010 

 

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 

FROM:  Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

SUBJECT: Petition to vacate an unimproved platted public alley right‐of‐way 

PURPOSE: 
Approve an Ordinance to vacate an unimproved platted public alley right‐of‐way. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Ordinance to vacate the subject right‐of‐way in accordance with City of Piqua Charter 
Section 98.  

BACKGROUND: 
The city of Piqua Municipal Power System has purchased the property located on either side of the 
subject alley way and desires to consolidate the parcels into one tract of land.  The purpose for 
combining the parcels is to create one tract large enough to accommodate an improvement project 
proposed at this site.  The subject right‐of‐way is currently vacant with no existing surface 
improvements found at this location.  The primary land use in this area is light industrial.     

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Ordinance and authorize vacating the subject public right‐of‐way. 
2) Defeat the Ordinance and refuse to vacate the subject public right‐of‐way. 

DISCUSSION: 
The subject alley right‐of‐way is unimproved and there are no adjacent properties that use or 
depend upon this right‐of‐way for access.  Vacating the alley right‐of‐way will allow the property to 
be combined with the adjoining properties to create larger tract suitable for a proposed 
improvement project. 

Public notification of the public hearing to discuss the proposed public right‐of‐way vacation was 
provided in accordance with the applicable Charter provisions.  At the public hearing conducted by 
the Planning Commission to discuss this item there were no public comments received.  After 
considering all testimony and information provided, the Planning Commission voted 4‐0 in favor of 
recommending approval of the proposed alley vacation.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Vacating the subject right‐of‐way will have no adverse fiscal impact on the City.  

COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
Approval of the right‐of‐way vacation will allow for plans to construct a modern Power System 
service center at this location to move forward, further enhancing the quality and efficiency of the 



 Page 2 
 

Power System services provided to the community.  The proposed vacation would have no adverse 
affect on the surrounding property owners or the interest of the general public. 

CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The proposed vacation is consistent and compatible with all adopted City plans and policies, 
including the Goal, Principles, and Objectives and Strategies outlined in the Land Use and Utilities 
chapters of the Plan It Piqua Comprehensive Plan document.  











E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

P
ro

po
se

d 
U

ni
m

pr
ov

ed
 A

lle
y 

Va
ca

tio
n

S
TA

TL
E

R
 A

V
E

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 A
LL

E
Y 

VA
C

AT
IO

N





















                                   RESOLUTION NO. R-150-10 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO WENCO, INC. 

     FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT OF A NEW POWER                              
                                      SYSTEM SERVICE CENTER 
 
 WHEREAS, the Power System has purchased property on Hemm Avenue to 
build a consolidated Service Center in anticipation of the 2012 demolition of the 
Power Plant. 
 

WHEREAS, qualifications were received on October 29, 2010, from eight 
firms to provide design and construction management services associated with the 
construction of a new Power System Service Center. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 
 SEC. 1: A contract for said design and construction management 
services is hereby awarded to Wenco, Inc. as the best, responsible proposer and the 
City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said proposer pursuant 
to contract specifications. 

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 

warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the City treasury in payment 
according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $400,000.  
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of December 21, 2010 
 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Ed Krieger, Power System Director 
  
SUBJECT: Service Center Design & Construction Management Services 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
 

Approve the Resolution No. R-150-10 authorizing the City of Piqua Power System to 
retain the services of Wenco, Inc. to provide design and construction management 
services associated with the construction of a new consolidated Power System Service 
Center in 2011 and 2012. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

I am requesting approval of Resolution No. R-150-10, which will authorize the Power 
System to retain the services of Wenco, Inc. to provide said design and construction 
management services at a cost not to exceed $400,000. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

The Power System currently houses a majority of our operation in the decommissioned 
nuclear Power Plant (Dome) located at 123 Bridge Street.  The Dome is currently 
owned by the Federal Government and the City of Piqua has an agreement to occupy 
the building until a yet to be determined future time when ownership will revert to the 
City of Piqua.  The remaining Power System staff and materials are housed within or 
near the decommissioned coal-fired Power Plant at 919 S. Main Street.   
 
Current plans (assuming timely Clean-Ohio Revitalization Fund approval) call for 
demolition of the coal-fired Power Plant in 2012.  It is anticipated that the Underground 
Utilities department will move into the Dome after the new Power System Service 
Center construction is completed in 2012.  City Commission has previously approved 
the purchase of 5 acres of property bounded by Hemm and Basset Avenues to facilitate 
Service Center construction. 
 



 Page 2 
 

Eight firms (Bracket Builders, Bruns, Corna Kokosing, Ferguson, KAPP/MSA, Levin 
Porter, Thomas Marker & Wenco) submitted proposals on October 29, 2010 in 
response to Piqua’s Request for Qualifications to provide design and construction 
management services associated with construction of a new consolidated Power System 
Service Center.  Based on estimated cost, the group was short-listed to the four most 
cost-effective firms which included Bracket Builders, Corna Kokosing, Ferguson & 
Wenco.  Bev Yount, Nick Berger and I than conducted personal interviews from 
November 4th through 8th with these four firms, further short-listing the candidates to 
Ferguson and Wenco, which are both capable local firms that have experience 
managing similar electric utility service center projects.   
 
Additional information was requested concerning each firm’s design narrative, which 
subsequently identified that Wenco would assign more experienced staff to Piqua’s 
project, as well as devote three times the design hours as compared to Ferguson to 
properly design the project.  The interview team concluded that Wenco’s proposal was 
superior and much more realistic given the lack of Power System experience in 
constructing such a facility.  Ultimately we determined that hiring Wenco, Inc. would 
help ensure the best possible design and construction management process.      

 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 

1) Approve Resolution No. R-150-10 authorizing the City of Piqua Power System to 
retain the services of Wenco, Inc. to provide design and construction management 
services associated with construction of the consolidated Power System Service 
Center in 2011 and 2012. 

2) Do not approve Resolution No. R-150-10. 
3) Do not approve the Resolution and provide staff with further direction. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 

Approximately 5 acres of property along Hemm & Bassett Avenues has previously 
been purchased for the construction of a consolidated Power System Service Center.  A 
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment was completed by Professional Service 
Industries, Inc. on 12/16/09.  This assessment revealed no evidence of Recognized 
Environmental Conditions (RECs) in connection with the site.   
 
The approval of Resolution R-150-10 will allow Power System staff to proceed with 
plans to construct a consolidated Power System Service Center.  Based on the expected 
demolition of the coal-fired Power Plant in 2012, construction of the Service Center 
would begin with design and early site work, including extending utilities to the site by 
Power System employees in 2011, with construction of the new facility completed by 
the fall of 2012.  The selected site is considered ideal due to the proximity of existing 
Power system assets, including two electrical substations and the dam.  It is located 
within an existing industrial/commercial area along South Main Street which will allow 
for prompt emergency and outage response. 



 Page 3 
 

The Energy Board unanimously recommended Piqua City Commission approve 
awarding a contract to Wenco, Inc. for design and construction management services 
associated with construction of a consolidated Power System Service center at their 
November 23, 2010 regular meeting. 
 
A possible alternative is to reject Resolution R-150-10 and cancel future plans for 
construction of the Power System Service Center.  The benefit would obviously be a 
savings to the Power System of $400,000.  However, the Power System has already 
purchased a five acre site at a cost of approximately $75,000 which would have no 
other use for the Power System and most likely be sold at a loss if a buyer could be 
identified.  In addition, this option does nothing to address the long-range facility needs 
of the Power System or the Underground Utilities department. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

The Power System has included $150,000 in the 2011 budget for design services 
associated with the new Power System Service Center and $545,000 for early site work, 
including extending utilities to the Service Center property.  It is anticipated that 
approximately half ($200,000) of Wenco’s fees will be paid in 2011, with the 
remaining portion ($200,000) to be budgeted and paid in 2012 when the majority of the 
Service Center construction will be completed.   

 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
 

The approval of Resolution No. R-150-10 will provide the City of Piqua Power System 
professional consulting and engineering services associated with the design and 
construction management of the new Service Center.  Consolidating Power System 
personnel, equipment, inventory and resources will significantly improve the 
operation’s overall efficiency.  The future Service Center site is ideally located near key 
Power System infrastructure; include two electrical substations and the dam.  The 
location along South Main Street will allow for quick emergency and outage response 
to any location within our service territory. The approval of Resolution R-150-10 will 
ultimately allow for an improved level of service to our electric customers. 

   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
 

The design and ultimate construction of a consolidated Power System Service Center 
are included in the Power System’s ten year capital plan.  This long-planned project is 
consistent with the Power System’s goals of providing cost-effective and efficient 
delivery of service, while also providing a high level of customer-service.  The Piqua 
Energy Board unanimously recommended City Commission approve to retain the 
services of Wenco, Inc. to provide design and construction management services 
associated with construction of a consolidated Power System Service Center during 
their regular meeting of November 23, 2010. 

 



              RESOLUTION NO.  R-151-10 
 
A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO 
PURCHASE THE REAL PROPERTY AND BUILDING(S) 
LOCATED AT 517 E. ASH STREET ON THE E. ASH STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT, PAYABLE TO WENDY 
DERAS, IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $56,000 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua desires to complete a reconstruction project on 
E. Ash Street (US Route 36) from Spring Street to the river bridge; and 
  
 WHEREAS, it will be necessary to acquire right-of-way for the reconstruction 
project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is responsible for 100% of the cost of right-of-
way acquisition on the E. Ash Reconstruction Project, in accordance with its 
agreement with ODOT; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the value of the property has been established in strict 
conformance with federal highway administration guidelines. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto, concurring 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to pay for the said real 
property and building(s) located at 517 E. Ash Street to Wendy Deras, in the amount 
not to exceed $56,000. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of December 21, 2010 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Amy Havenar, City Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Purchase the structure and property located at 517 E. Ash Street as part of the E. 

Ash Street Reconstruction Project.   
 
PURPOSE:   
Request for City Commission authorization to purchase the structure and property located at 
517 E. Ash Street from Wendy Deras at a cost not to exceed $56,000. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval of the Resolution to allow for the purchase of 517 E. Ash Street.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
The E. Ash Street Reconstruction project has been in the planning & design stages for a 
number of years.  As such, we are nearing the final phase of the project prior to the start of 
construction, which is scheduled for November of 2011.  The right-of-way acquisition phase is 
the last phase of the project that needs to be completed.   
 
We are now to the acquisition stage for the property located at 517 E. Ash Street.  The 
appraisal has been completed by O.R. Colan & Associates, and a review of that appraisal was 
completed by M-E Companies, which resulted in an appraised value of the property at 
$56,000.00 
 
The schedule for the right-of-way acquisition portion is for all of the work to be completed and 
on file with the Ohio Department of Transportation in June of 2011.          
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve the Resolution to allow for the purchase of 517 E. Ash Street.     
2) Do not approve the Resolution to purchase the structure and property located at 517 E. 

Ash Street and modify the construction plans to work around the property.  This 
alternative would still require the City to compensate the owner of 517 E. Ash Street for 
the cost to relocate the front door and steps to the side of the property due to the damages 
that will be caused by the construction project.   

 
 
 



 Page 2 
 

 DISCUSSION: 
The appraisal for this property was conducted by O.R. Colan & Associates as per the 
requirements of the Ohio Department of Transportation’s (ODOT) Real Estate Policy and 
Procedures Manual.  This appraisal was also reviewed by an independent consulting firm,  
M-E Companies, to ensure compliance with the Federal Highway Administration.  The offer 
to purchase the property located at 517 E. Ash Street was made to the property owner based 
upon the fair market value for the property.   
 
Due to the fact that this property is a rental property and there is a tenant occupying the 
facility, there will also need to be relocation benefits paid to the current tenant as part of the 
right-of-way process.  The relocation process will involve O.R. Colan meeting with the owners 
and/or tenants for a site interview and identifying replacement housing for the displacees, 
including the determination of relocation payments as well as obtaining moving bids.  This 
process will begin once the final paperwork has been processed with the property owner.     
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The City has been anticipating this project for a number of years and therefore has been 
reserving funds for the acquisition portion of the project, as well as for the actual 
construction.  The 2010 Budget included $400,000 for the purchase of right-of-way for the E. 
Ash Street project.     
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
An “open house” meeting was held on February 25, 2009 with representatives from the City 
of Piqua, ODOT and the design consultant all in attendance to present the project to the 
public.  The outcome of the meeting dictated the final roadway design, which will consist of a 
3-lane facility (one lane each direction with a center turn lane).   The project was discussed in 
detail and the residents were given an opportunity to view the proposed improvements on 
their individual properties and to express any concerns they had.  
 
The purchase and subsequent removal of the property located at 517 E. Ash Street will allow 
for the construction of the roadway improvements as currently planned.  The E. Ash Street 
Reconstruction Project will greatly improve the aesthetics of one of the main gateways into 
the City of Piqua and will also compliment the I-75/US 36 Landscaping Project which is 
currently under construction.   
    
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
As stated in the Comprehensive Plan Update, one of the main goals is to improve the 
entrances to the City of Piqua.  The E. Ash Street Reconstruction Project will complete the 
reconstruction of one of the major entrances to the City.  This project was part of the Ten Year 
Plan for major capital improvement projects and has been in the planning stages for 
approximately 6 years.   
 
All right-of-way acquisitions are being completed in accordance with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation’s Real Estate Policy and Procedures Manual. 













































































































































































































































RESOLUTION NO.  R-155-10 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TRANSFERS OF CASH 
FROM THE GENERAL FUND TO THE OTHER FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2010 
 

 
WHEREAS, This Commission has authorized ORDINANCE 36-10 which 

includes General Fund transfers to various funds, and various other fund transfers to 
Debt Service Sinking Funds for the year 2010. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, The Auditor of State Ohio Compliance Supplement requires that: 
“Transfers require a resolution authorizing the transfers.” 
 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
 

SEC. 1: That the Finance Director be authorized to transfer funds from the 
General Fund to other funds listed in Appendix A in an amount not to exceed the 
Appropriation Ordinance 36-10 listed in Appendix A. 

 
  
SEC. 2: That the Finance Director be authorized to transfer from the 

Originating Funds to the respective Debt Service Sinking Funds in an amount not to 
exceed the Appropriation Ordinance 36-10. 

 
 

 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 

     ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



Transfers from:

The General Fund 001 1,260,248$     
Fund 106 Safety Fund 87,844$          

Total General Fund Transfers from 1,348,092$     

Transfers to:

Fund 248 Building Facility Bonds Fund 497,161$        
Fund 249 PFDP Pension G.O. Bonds Debt Service 39,126$          
Fund 252 Hotel Debt Service Fund 351,095$        
Fund 255 Fire Equipment 2008 G.O. Note 48,718$          
Fund 409 Golf Course Fund 191,640$        
Fund 410 Fort Piqua Plaza 146,674$        
Fund 415 Swimming Pool Fund 73,678$          

Total Transfers to 1,348,092$     

Transfers from:

Fund 103 Street Construction 92,668$          

Transfers to:

Fund 216 SIB 25A Note '08 92,668$          

APPENDIX A

RESOLUTION NO. R-155-10

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2010



RESOLUTION NO.  R-156-10  
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TRANSFERS OF CASH 
FROM THE GENERAL FUND TO THE OTHER FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2011 
 

 
WHEREAS, This Commission has authorized ORDINANCE 33-10 which 

includes General Fund transfers to various funds, and various other fund transfers to 
Debt Service Sinking Funds for the year 2011. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, The Auditor of State Ohio Compliance Supplement requires that: 
“Transfers require a resolution authorizing the transfers.” 
 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
 

SEC. 1: That the Finance Director be authorized to transfer from the 
General Fund to other funds listed in Appendix A in an amount not to exceed the 
Appropriation Ordinance 33-10 listed in Appendix A. 

 
  
SEC. 2: That the Finance Director be authorized to transfer from the 

Originating Funds to the respective Debt Service Sinking Funds in an amount not to 
exceed the Appropriation Ordinance 33-10. 

 
 

 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 

     ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



Transfers from:

The General Fund 001 844,282$        
Fund 106 Safety Fund 85,801$          

Total General Fund Transfers from 930,083$        

Transfers to:

Fund 249 PFDP Pension G.O. Bonds Debt Service 38,278$          
Fund 252 Hotel Debt Service Fund 347,427$        
Fund 255 Fire Equipment 2008 G.O. Note 47,523$          
Fund 409 Golf Course Fund 238,000$        
Fund 410 Fort Piqua Plaza 150,855$        
Fund 415 Swimming Pool Fund 108,000$        

Total Transfers to 930,083$        

Transfers from:

Fund 103 Street Construction 97,368$          

Transfers to:

Fund 216 SIB 25A Note 2008 97,368$          

APPENDIX A

RESOLUTION NO. R-156-10

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2011




